HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 02, 2001
1: 41 PM

TAPE HFC 01 — 69, Side A
TAPE HFC 01 - 69, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:41 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representati ve El don Miul der, Co-Chair
Representati ve Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft

Represent ati ve John Davi es
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative John Harris

Represent ati ve Ken Lancaster
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bill Hudson

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Getchen Guess; Representative Fred Dyson;
Hans Neidig, Staff, Senator Lydia Geen; Alison Elgee,
Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Adm nistration; Rosalee
Wal ker, Board Menber, O der Al askans Agi ng G oup, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jeff Jesse, Executive Director, Alaska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority, Anchorage, Departnment of Revenue.

SUMVARY

HB 162 An Act relating to absences from the state under
the | ongevity bonus program
HB 162 was reported out of Commttee with a “do
pass” recomendation and with a fiscal note by the
Departnent of Adm nistration dated 3/22/01.

CSSB 112 (FIN) An Act placing certain enployees of the

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority in the exenpt
service; establishing a mninmum salary for the

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/02/01 1:41 PM



long term care onbudsman; and providing for an
effective date.

CS SB 112(FIN) was reported out of Conmttee with
a “do pass” recomendation and with a zero fisca
note by the Departnent of Revenue dated 3/01/01

#HB162
HOUSE BI LL NO. 162

An Act relating to absences from the state under the
| ongevity bonus program

REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSON advised that the House HESS
Comm ttee had sponsor ed HB  162. He i nt roduced
Representative Getchen GQuess, the co-sponsor.

Representative Dyson noted that the bill would change two
Longevity Bonus date clauses. It would increase the
al | owabl e paid absence from 30 to 60 consecutive days and it
woul d extend the unpaid sabbatical from 90 consecutive days
to five years.

Representative Dyson commented that the Longevity Bonus is
extrenely inmportant to many of its recipients, especially
those who are |ow incone. By extending the allowable paid
absence to 60 days and by extending the unpaid sabbatical to
five years, seniors would be able to | eave the State w t hout
a penalty.

Representative Davies asked what the public interest was in
not re-qualifying those seniors. He asked why there was a
need for a five-year limt. He suggested dropping the five-
year cl ause.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRETCHEN GUESS replied that the five-year
cl ause was introduced as a nmechanismto clean out the rolls
for those who are eligible. She clainmed that elimnating
the five-year clause would make it nore difficult for the
Department of Adm nistration to determ ne who was eligible.

Representative Davies reiterated, “Wuat difference would it
make to the State”.

Representative Dyson explained that when people in the
program die, it helps the Departnent clear the rolls. He
added that he would not object to changing or renoving the
dat e.

Representative Harris thought that the |length extension
would allow nore people to qualify for the program
Representati ve Guess advi sed that the extension from 30 days
to 60 days woul d nake a positive fiscal note, but that would
be off set with the extension of 90 days to 5 years.

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/02/01 1:41 PM



Currently, there are participants leaving for 90 days, and
in order to keep their eligibility, they nust return for a
nonth. Extending it fromthe 30 to 60 days does cost nore
but the other change would create a negative “fix”.

Representative Harris asked at this tine, if a person left
the State for 90 days or nore, would they then not qualify
for the Longevity Bonus. Representative Guess explained
that unless they cane back to the State, they would no
| onger qualify, however, they would have to be repaid for
the nonth that they returned.

ALl SON ELCGEE, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTIVENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, explained the fiscal note. She stated that
the extension of the allowable absence from 30 days to 60
days was the period in which the eligible person would
continue to receive their check. The costs associated with
Section 1 woul d be $288, 400 dollars. She added that Section
2 woul d save the State noney, however, it would be difficult
to predict the anmount. The Departnent estimated that if 10%
of the Longevity Bonus recipients were absent fromthe State
for an additional 30 days, the program would save $435, 100
dollars. Those nunbers indicate the potential savings.

Ms. El gee addressed the *“all owabl e absence” question voiced
by Representative Harris. R ght now all owabl e absences are
up to 90 consecutive days, and then they nmust return for at
| east ten days; or they can be gone for a total of 180 days
during the last twelve nonths. Medical treatnent is an
al | onabl e absence, however, the spouse is not allowed out
for the extended tine period.

Co-Chair Mul der asked if the "piggy-back” provision had been
probl ematic. M. El gee advised that the spouse does have to
return after 90 consecutive days. Co-Chair Ml der asked if
that would be corrected in the bill. Ms. El gee expl ai ned
that it woul d.

Representative Foster asked the nunber of people in the
Longevity Program Ms. Elgee replied that there are 22,000
recipients currently in the program and that it is
decreasi ng on an annual bases of about 6% to 7%

Representative Davies questioned the State’'s interest in
Section 2. Ms. Elgee responded that it would provide the

Departnent an opportunity to purge out the rules. The
program is currently in a phase out, and the Departnent
would like to know when it has been conpleted. The

| egi sl ati on would provide an opportunity to elimnate those
people that are no l|longer eligible. She acknow edged t hat
there is no “magic” to 5 years.

Representative Croft referenced Section 3, (A)(4). He asked
if there had been any cut off at all. Ms. El gee expl ai ned

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/02/01 1:41 PM



that it would be a policy call to determ ne how the program
shoul d be handl ed. The Departnent is requesting a tine
limt in order to determ ne the necessary records.

Co-Chair WIIlians asked how nmany enpl oyees woul d be kept on
staff to execute the program Ms. Elgee replied that the
staff consists of three clerks who process the Longevity
Bonus checks each nonth. She added that they have
addi tional duties. The Departnent anticipates that as the
program di m ni shes, the staff will also decrease. The staff
currently maintains the wait lists for the Pioneer Hones.

Co- Chair Mul der asked how the Departnment determnes if a
person has been out of the State for |onger than 30 days.

Ms. Elgee replied that the checks are only sent to instate
addresses and if the checks are returned with an out of
State postmark, the paynent of the check is suspended until
the Departnent can check these circunstances out. Peopl e
are asked to report their absences. |f sonmeone has a beyond
thirty day absence, they are requested to docunent that
| eave. They are then reactivated when they return to
Al aska.

Co- Chair Mul der noted that the State does not spend a | ot of
noney to track these people. He believed that the
| egislation would allow people to be "nore" truthful,
however, voiced concern, that the Ilegislation would be
subjecting the State to potential |egal recourse for those
that have “life status”. He asked if making the adjustnent
could create a |egal problem Ms. Elgee did not know if
that woul d be a probl em

ROSALEE WALKER, BOARD MEMBER, OLDER ALASKANS AG NG GROUP,
JUNEAU, testified in support of the 1egislation. She
related a personal experience with the illness of her nother
and how when she left the State to care for her elderly
not her, she nearly |ost her Longevity Bonus. She commented
that changing the 60 days would make it easier for those
depending on the bonus to pay their bills. She stressed
that she could not financially nanage w thout the bonus

Ms. Wal ker acknowl edged that problens do arise with the
current system

Co-Chair Mulder requested that Mke Tibbles, Staff to
Representative Bill WIlianms, speak wth Tamara Cook,
Legislative Legal, regarding a legal opinion to protect the
State with the changes that the |legislation proposes.
Representative Dyson advised that if there is a problem he
woul d recomend Speaker Porter to address these concerns on
t he House Fl oor.

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/02/01 1:41 PM



Representative Davies MOED a conceptual anmendnent to Page
2, Section 2, changing that |anguage to a del ayed effective
date of 15 years.

Co-Chair WIlianms OBIJECTED.

Co-Chair Ml der commented that dying disqualifies people,
however, he believed that for the Departnent’s records, it
woul d be beneficial to have a sound date determ nation
policy. He suggested that people should have sone certainty
in know ng what would be happing within five years and if
they would be returning to the State.

Representative Croft agreed wth Co-Chair Milder. He
commented on the |egal defense. He nmaintained that the
State retains the ability to change the rules. He agreed
that changing the 30 to 60 days would be a rational anount
of time and would be a change that was justified. He
commented that the proposed change would conplicate the
"sinpl e" change.

Representative Davies disagreed. There are no new people
that can qualify for the program The | anguage addresses
those people that are presently qualified. He questi oned
the public rational for having that | anguage. In the
previ ous | anguage, a person could re-qualify as many tines
as they wanted. He did not believe that the change would
create a significant fiscal inpact.

Representative Witaker inquired the age of those included
in the program M. Elgee recalled that the application was
cl osed on Decenber 1996. At that time, each persons had to
be 65, and that now, the population is now 70 plus years.
Representative Wi taker noted that within fifteen years, the
program woul d be nearly over.

Vice-Chair Bunde comented that the bonus was initially
provided in order to help these older people to continue to
live in the State. Representative Davies argued that there
are legitimte reasons for living outside the State for nore
than five years. He noted that there are people that |eave,
and are not being paid the bonus while they are gone. He
proposed that if one of those folks decides to cone back,
what would be the State’'s interest in saying "no".

Ms. El gee advised that there would have to be a
denonstration on their part, which indicates that they
intended to be a "real"” resident. She added that there are
residency indicators which are checked.

Co-Chair WIllians commented that five years is a long tine

to keep track of an individual. M. Elgee replied that the
State of Alaska would not attenpt to keep track. If they

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/02/01 1:41 PM



returned to the State, then it would be their responsibility
to make the contact.

Representati ve Davies W THDREW t he MOTI ON to anend.

Co-Chair Ml der spoke in support of the 60-day provision
change. He noted his concern with the continued senior
citizen property tax exenption.

Representative Davies commented that program acconplishes
the State's original function. He noted that |egislation
does provide for "honoring our pioneers". He claimed that
the tax exenption does have the effect of keeping famlies
t oget her. Representative J. Davies recommended that there
be a financial “nmeans” test wused to qualify for the
exenption. He stressed that there remains a societal reason
to encourage seniors to stay in the State.

Co-Chair Mul der MOVED to report HB 162 out of Committee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and with the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

HB 162 was reported out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recoomendation and a fiscal note by the Departnent of
Adm ni stration dated 3/22/01.

TAPE HFC 01 - 69, Side B

#SB112
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 112(FIN)

An Act placing certain enployees of the Al aska Mental
Health  Trust Authority in the exenpt servi ce;
establishing a mninmum salary for the long term care
onbudsman; and providing for an effective date.

HANS NEI DI G STAFF, SENATOR LYDA CGREEN, stated that SB 112
woul d place enployees of the Al aska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority (AMHTA) in the exenpt service while establishing a
m ni mum salary for the Long Term Care Onbudsman.

M. Neidig noted that SB 112 was introduced at the request
of the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority to address
concerns expressed about their ability to function
efficiently as a State corporation.

The legislation would establish a mnimum salary for the
Long Term Care Orbudsman at Range 21. Establishing a
m ni mum salary of the Long Term Care Onbudsman woul d help
ensure that a qualified individual can be hired for that
crucial position.

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/02/01 1:41 PM



Vice-Chair Bunde inquired what range these enployees
currently are at. M. Neidig replied that they currently
are at a Range 20. He noted that a maxi num sal ary had not
yet been established.

Representative Harris questioned how |long the position had
been unfill ed. M. Neidig understood that it had been
vacant since Novenber 2000.

JEFF JESSE, (TESFITIFED VIA TELECONFERENCE) , EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY (ANHTA),
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, responded that the position has
remai ned vacant since the Executive Order, which transferred
responsibility to the Trust Authority. He commented that
there has been a trenendous turnover in that position, which
he predicted resulted not only from the salary range but
al so the intense workload. M. Jesse acknow edged that the
enpl oyee is asked to take on a trenendous responsibility for
that sal ary range.

Representative Harris asked if the salary was being paid

from the AVHTA account. M. Jesse advised that the entire
budget at this tine is paid for out of the Federal Senior
Services Block Gant. Currently, there is an increnment in

the Departnent of Admnistration’s budget that would add
$100 thousand dollar increase to the $250 thousand dollars
in federal nobney, to increase the overall capacity of the
of fice. He noted that only the |ong-term onbudsman woul d
fall under that sal ary change.

Representative Witaker asked if there was sonething in
existing law, which mght preclude a higher pay rate for
that position. M. Jesse explained that the position is in
classified service. That position has been classified at a
Range 20 and it would not be possible to pay higher.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde pointed out that the | egislation stipulates
that it would be a "m nimunt’ of Range 21. He asked what M.
Jesse would anticipate the maxi num paynent range to be.
M. Jesse advised that AWMHTA did not want to pay anynore
than they had to for that job category. He noted that a job
in that area requires a conbination skill level and that it
woul d be good if that person had sone | egal background. He
stressed that it was not the intention to pay nore than
necessary to get a qualified person for the position.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde asked if the maxinmum step was a Range 28
for an exenpt position. M. Jesse replied the requested
position was not exenpt, and enphasi zed that no one woul d be
paid a Range 28 for that position.

Representative Davies MOVED to report CS SB 112 (FIN) out of
Commttee wth individual recomendations and wth the

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/02/01 1:41 PM



acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CS SB 112 (FIN) was reported out of Committee with a "do
pass" pass recommendation and with a zero fiscal note by the
Departnent of Revenue dated 3/01/01.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:40 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/02/01 1:41 PM



